Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015

Or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 001-36193

Trevena, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 26-1469215
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

1018 West 8th Avenue, Suite A
King of Prussia, PA 19406
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (610) 354-8840
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:None

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the

preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be

submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.:

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O

Non-accelerated filer O
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes[O No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practical date.

Common Stock, $0.001 par value Shares outstanding as of May 4, 2015: 39,356,378

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Page



PART I- FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited)
Balance Sheets
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
Statements of Cash Flow
Notes to Unaudited Financial Statements

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
PART II- OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Item 5. Other Information
Item 6. Exhibits
SIGNATURES

Table of Contents

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Quarterly Report”) contains forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. The forward-
looking statements are contained principally in the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” but also are
contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, as well as in sections such as “Risk Factors” that are incorporated by reference into this Quarterly Report from our most recent
Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Annual Report”). In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by the words “may,” “might,” “will,” “could,” “would,”
“should,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “objective,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “project,” “potential,” “continue” and “ongoing,” or the negative of these
terms, or other comparable terminology intended to identify statements about the future. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from the information expressed or implied by these forward-
looking statements. Although we believe that we have a reasonable basis for each forward-looking statement contained in this Quarterly Report, we caution you that these
statements are based on a combination of facts and factors currently known by us and our expectations of the future, about which we cannot be certain. Forward-looking
statements include statements about:

” < 2 2

our plans to develop and potentially commercialize our product candidates;

the exercise by Actavis plc (formerly Forest Laboratories Holdings Limited) of its option to license TRV027 and, if exercised, our ability to achieve milestones
under the license;

our planned clinical trials and preclinical studies for our product candidates;

the timing of and our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approvals for our product candidates;

the extent of clinical trials potentially required by the FDA for our product candidates;

the clinical utility and market acceptance of our product candidates;

our commercialization, marketing and manufacturing capabilities and strategy;

our intellectual property position; and

our ability to identify additional product candidates with significant commercial potential that are consistent with our commercial objectives.

You should refer to the “Risk Factors” section of the Annual Report for a discussion of important factors that may cause our actual results to differ materially from
those expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements. As a result of these factors, we cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report
will prove to be accurate. Furthermore, if our forward-looking statements prove to be inaccurate, the inaccuracy may be material. In light of the significant uncertainties in
these forward-looking statements, you should not regard these statements as a representation or warranty by us or any other person that we will achieve our objectives and

plans in any specified time frame, or at all. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, except as required by law.
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PART I
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TREVENA, INC.

Balance Sheets

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

(unaudited) As Adjusted
Assets
Current assets:



Cash and cash equivalents $ 29,135,895 $ 36,205,559
Marketable securities 71,636,172 70,698,640
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,723,511 669,155
Total current assets 102,495,578 107,573,354
Property and equipment, net 590,179 553,294
Restricted cash 112,410 112,410
Total assets $ 103,198,167 $ 108,239,058
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,152,445 $ 4,342,480
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1,425,038 2,578,269
Deferred revenue 7,500,000 —
Deferred rent 40,254 38,359
Total current liabilities 12,117,737 6,959,108
Loans payable, net 1,719,667 1,692,884
Capital lease, net of current portion 10,023 10,677
Deferred rent, net of current portion 271,291 281,885
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 1,875,000 —
Warrant liability 91,264 82,851
Other long term liabilities 19,151 8,025
Total liabilities 16,104,133 9,035,430
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 39,347,565 and 39,241,173 shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively 39,347 39,241
Additional paid-in capital 231,946,082 231,152,894
Accumulated deficit (144,899,370) (131,969,725)
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) 7,975 (18,782)
Total stockholders’ equity 87,094,034 99,203,628
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 103,198,167 $ 108,239,058
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TREVENA, INC.
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)
Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014
Revenue:
Collaboration revenue 625,000 $ —
Total revenue 625,000 —
Operating expenses:
General and administrative 3,089,622 2,020,865
Research and development 10,598,993 7,633,509
Total operating expenses 13,688,615 9,654,374
Loss from operations (13,063,615) (9,654,374)
Other income (expense):
Change in fair value of warrant liability (8,413) 98,922
Miscellaneous income 173,535 176,015
Interest income 39,469 6,023
Interest expense (70,621) —
Total other income 133,970 280,960
Net loss and comprehensive loss (12,929,645) (9,373,414)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock — (28,521)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders (12,929,645) $ (9,401,935)
Other comprehensive income, net:
Unrealized gains on marketable securities 26,757 —
Other comprehensive gains 26,757 —
Comprehensive loss (12,902,888) § (9,401,935)
Per share information:
Net loss per share of common stock, basic and diluted 033) $ (0.59)
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted 39,251,184 16,023,497

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TREVENA, INC.

Statement of Stockholders’ Equity (Unaudited)

For the period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015



Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock Accumulated
$0.001 Additional Other Total
Number of Par Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Value Capital Deficit Gain/(Loss) Equity
Balance, January 1, 2015 39,241,173 $ 39241 $ 231,152,894 $ (131,969,725) $ (18,782) $ 99,203,628
Stock-based
compensation
expense — — 613,887 — — 613,887
Exercise of stock
options 106,392 106 179,301 — — 179,407
Unrealized gain on
marketable securities — — — — 26,757 26,757
Net loss — — — (12,929,645) — (12,929,645)
Balance, March 31, 2015 39,347,565 $ 39,347 $ 231,946,082  $ (144,899,370) $ 7975 $ 87,094,034

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TREVENA, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
Noncash interest expense on loans
Revaluation of warrant liability
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses, offering costs and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of marketable securities
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:

Proceeds from exercise of common stock options
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net
Capital lease payments

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014
$ (12,929,645)  $ (9,373,414)
52,503 105,824
613,887 527,302
37,909 —
8,413 (98,922)
(840,710) 532,005
(2,351,995) 2,150,724
9,375,000 —
(6,034,638) (6,156,481)
(89,389) (20,629)
(1,124,420) —
(1,213,809) (20,629)
179,408 3,439
— 59,553,139
(625) —
178,783 59,556,578
(7,069,664 53,379,468
36,205,559 37,965,198
$ 29,135895 91,344,666

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1. Organization and Description of the Business

TREVENA, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Financial Statements

March 31, 2015

Trevena, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware as Parallax Therapeutics, Inc. on November 9, 2007. The Company began operations in
December 2007, and its name was changed to Trevena, Inc. on January 3, 2008. The Company is a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company that discovers, develops and
intends to commercialize therapeutics that use a novel approach to target G protein coupled receptors. The Company operates in one segment and has its principal office in

King of Prussia, Pennsylvania.

Public Offerings of Common Stock

On February 5, 2014, the Company issued and sold 9,250,000 shares of common stock in an initial public offering (the “IPO”) at a price of $7.00 per share, for
aggregate gross proceeds of $64.8 million. On March 6, 2014, in connection with the partial exercise of the IPO underwriters’ over-allotment option, the Company sold an



additional 270,449 shares of common stock at a price of $7.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $1.9 million. The net offering proceeds to the
Company from both sales were approximately $59.5 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $4.7 million and offering costs of
approximately $2.5 million. In addition, as part of the IPO, all of the Company’s outstanding convertible preferred stock was converted and all but 22,580 of its outstanding
warrants were net exercised into an aggregate of 15,728,286 shares of common stock.

On December 10, 2014, the Company issued and sold 11,250,000 shares of common stock in a public offering as well as 1,598,000 shares of common stock
pursuant to the partial exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option for a total of 12,848,000 shares at a price of $4.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of
approximately $51.4 million. The net offering proceeds to the Company from the combined sales were approximately $47.7 million, after deducting underwriting discounts
and commissions of approximately $3.1 million and offering costs of approximately $0.6 million.

Liquidity

At March 31, 2015, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $144.9 million and its net loss was $12.9 million and $9.4 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company expects its cash and cash equivalents of $29.1 million and marketable securities of $71.6 million as of March 31, 2015
and the $16.5 million that the Company is eligible to draw in the fourth quarter of 2015 under the second tranche of its credit facility, together with interest thereon, to be
sufficient to fund its operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements through the end of 2016.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).
Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative United States generally accepted accounting principles as found in the Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) and Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). The Company considers the U.S. dollar
to be its functional currency.

Unaudited Interim Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements are unaudited. The interim unaudited financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual audited
financial statements and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for the fair statement of the
Company’s financial position as of March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations, its comprehensive loss and its cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
2014. The financial data and other information disclosed in these notes related to the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results
to be expected for the year ending December 31, 2015, any other interim periods or any future year or period.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. Since the date of those financial statements, there have been no changes to the Company’s significant accounting
policies.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on our
stockholders’ equity, net income (loss) or cash flows.

Use of Estimates

Management considers many factors in selecting appropriate financial accounting policies and controls, and in developing the estimates and assumptions that are
used in the preparation of these financial statements. Management must apply significant judgment in this process. In addition, other factors may affect estimates, including
expected business and operational changes, sensitivity and volatility associated with the assumptions used in developing estimates, and whether historical trends are expected
to be representative of future trends. The estimation process often may yield a range of potentially reasonable estimates of the ultimate future outcomes and management must
select an amount that falls within that range of reasonable estimates. This process may result in actual results differing materially from those estimated amounts used in the
preparation of the financial statements if these results differ from historical experience, or other assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate, even if such
assumptions are reasonable when made. In preparing these financial statements, management used significant estimates in the following areas, among others: stock-based
compensation expense, the determination of the fair value of stock-based awards, the fair value of liability-classified preferred and common stock warrants, and the accounting
for research and development costs, accrued expenses and the recoverability of the Company’s net deferred tax assets and related valuation allowance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company considers all highly liquid investments that have maturities of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents and are valued at cost, which
approximates their fair market value. The Company’s marketable securities are classified as “available-for-sale” and are carried at fair market value as current assets on its
balance sheets. Unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income included in
stockholders’ equity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (“ASC 820”), establishes a fair value hierarchy for instruments measured at fair value that distinguishes between
assumptions based on market data (observable inputs) and the Company’s own assumptions (unobservable inputs). Observable inputs are inputs that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s
assumptions about the inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, and are developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

ASC 820 identifies fair value as the exchange price, or exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820 establishes a three-tier
fair value hierarchy that distinguishes among the following:

Level 1—Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Level 2—Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets



that are not active and models for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement.
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To the extent that the valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more
judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Company in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. A financial instrument’s
level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis include money market mutual funds, restricted cash and warrants to purchase common stock. During the periods
presented, the Company has not changed the manner in which it values assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value using Level 3 inputs. The following fair value
hierarchy table presents information about each major category of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical Significant Other Significant
Items Observable Inputs Unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) Total
March 31, 2015
Assets
Money market mutual funds $ 22,969,543 $ — $ — $ 22,969,543
U.S. Treasury Bonds 70,406,000 — — 70,406,000
U.S. Government Securities — 1,230,172 — 1,230,172
Restricted cash 112,410 — — 112,410
Total assets $ 93,487,953 $ 1,230,172 $ — $ 94,718,125
Liabilities
Warrants to purchase common stock $ — $ — $ 91,264 $ 91,264
Total liabilities $ — $ — $ 91,264 $ 91,264
December 31, 2014
Assets
Money market mutual funds $ 29,064,011 $ — $ — $ 29,064,011
U.S. Treasury Bonds 70,698,640 — — 70,698,640
Restricted cash 112,410 — — 112,410
Total assets $ 99,875,061 $ — $ — $ 99,875,061
Liabilities
Warrants to purchase common stock $ — $ — $ 82,851 $ 82,851
Total liabilities $ — $ — $ 82,851 $ 82,851

The money market mutual funds are included in cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying balance sheets. The U.S. Treasury Bonds and U.S. Government
Securities are included in marketable securities in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end
of the reporting period. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, $1.2 million was transferred from money market mutual funds (a Level 1 investment) to U.S.
Government Securities (a Level 2 investment). There were no transfers within the hierarchy during the year ended December 31, 2014.

In connection with the issuance and sale of the Company’s Series B-1 preferred shares in 2011, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of Series B
preferred stock. Upon the IPO, the warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of Series B preferred stock was converted into a warrant to purchase up to 20,161 shares of the
Company’s common stock and remains outstanding with a fair value recorded as a liability of $91,264 at March 31, 2015 as it contains a cash settlement feature upon certain
strategic transactions. The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Company’s warrant liability, which represents a recurring measurement that
is classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, wherein fair value is estimated using significant unobservable inputs:

Warrant

Liability
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 82,851
Changes in estimated fair value 8,413
Balance as of March 31, 2015 $ 91,264
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The fair value of the warrants classified as liabilities on each re-measurement date is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. For this liability, the
Company develops its own assumptions that do not have observable inputs or available market data to support the fair value. This method of valuation involves using inputs
such as the fair value of the Company’s common stock and various classes of preferred stock, stock price volatility, the contractual term of the warrants, risk-free interest rates
and dividend yields. Due to the nature of these inputs, the valuation of the warrants is considered a Level 3 measurement. The following assumptions were used at March 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014:

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Common stock Common stock

warrant liability warrant liability
Estimated remaining term 7.09 years 7.34 years
Dividend yield 0.00 % 0.00 %
Risk-free interest rate 1.71% 1.99 %
Fair value of underlying instrument $ 652 $ 5.98
Volatility 73% 72%

The warrant liability is recorded on its own line item on the Company’s Balance Sheet and is marked-to-market at each reporting period with the change in fair value
recorded on its own line in the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.



Revenue Recognition

For the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company recognized collaboration revenue of $625,000 related to its March 2015 letter agreement with Actavis.
The terms of this agreement contain multiple deliverables which include (i) research and development activities and (ii) testing and analysis related to the ongoing Phase 2b
trial of TRV027 in exchange for a nonrefundable upfront fee of $10 million. Revenue is recognized only when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or the services have been rendered and the Company has fulfilled its performance obligations under the contract.

For arrangements with multiple elements, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-13, Multiple-
Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (“ASU 2009-13”), which provides guidance for separating and allocating consideration in a multiple element arrangement. Deliverables
under the arrangement are separate units of accounting if the delivered item has value to the customer on a standalone basis and if the arrangement includes a general right of
return relative to the delivery or performance of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially within the Company’s control. The arrangements consideration
that is fixed or determinable at the inception of the arrangement is allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their relative selling prices. Management exercises
significant judgement in determining whether a deliverable is a separate unit of accounting.

In determining the separate units of accounting, the Company evaluates whether the components have standalone value to the collaborator based on consideration of
the relevant facts and circumstances for each arrangements. Whenever the Company determines that an element is delivered over a period of time, revenue is recognized using
either a proportional performance model, if a pattern of performance can be determined or on a straight-line model over the period of performance, which is typically the
research and development term.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On April 7, 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-03,Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs(“ASU 2015-03”). ASU 2015-03
requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the Balance Sheets as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability. While the standard is retrospectively effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, early adoption is permitted for any annual reporting period or interim period for which the entity’s financial
statements have not yet been issued. The Company has elected early adoption in the current period that resulted in a balance sheet adjustment as of December 31, 2014 of
$98,401 to Other assets and Loans payable, net. The Company’s adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on its results of operations or cash flows. See
Note 4.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”). ASU 2014-09 is a
comprehensive new revenue recognition model requiring a company to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to a customer at an amount reflecting the
consideration it expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 may be applied using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach
and is effective for the Company’s fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016, and early adoption is not permitted. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact of this amendment to our financial position and results of operations.

3. Net Loss Per Common Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014
Basic and diluted net loss per common share calculation:
Net loss $ (12,929,645)  $ (9,373,414)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock — (28,521)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders (12,929,645) $ (9,401,935)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 39,251,184 16,023,497
Net loss per share of common stock—basic and diluted $ 033) $ (0.59)

The following outstanding securities at March, 31, 2015 and 2014 have been excluded from the computation of diluted weighted shares outstanding, as they would
have been anti-dilutive:

March 31,
2015 2014
Options outstanding 4,494,427 3,441,284
Warrants 30,258 22,580
Total 4,524,685 3,463,864
4. Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The following table presents changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax:
Balance, January 1, 2015 $ (18,782)
Net unrealized investment gains on marketable securities 26,757
Balance, March 31, 2015 $ 7,975
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There were no reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss during the three months ended March 31, 2015. There was no tax effect
during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

5. Long Term Debt

On September 19, 2014, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement with Oxford Finance LLC, as collateral agent and lender and Square 1 Bank, as
lender pursuant to which the lenders have agreed to lend the Company up to $35.0 million in a series of term loans. Upon entering into the agreement, the Company borrowed
$2.0 million from the lenders (“Term Loan A”). On April 13, 2015, the Company and the lenders amended the agreement to change the draw period for Term Loan B. As

amended, the Company may now, at its sole discretion, borrow from the lenders:

$16.5 million, at any time beginning on October 1, 2015 and ending on December 31, 2015 (“Term Loan B”) since the Company has satisfied specified conditions
precedent related to the results of the Company’s ongoing Phase 2 studies of TRV130; and

an additional $16.5 million, at any time on or before March 31, 2016 (“Term Loan C” and together with Term Loan A and Term Loan B, the “Term Loans”),



subject to the Company’s satisfaction of specified conditions precedent related to the results of the Company’s ongoing Phase 2 studies of TRV027.

The proceeds from Term Loan A and future proceeds, if any, from Term Loan B and/or Term Loan C may be used to satisfy the Company’s future working capital
needs, potentially including the development of its clinical and preclinical product candidates.

The Company’s obligations under the loan and security agreement are secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all of the assets of the Company,
other than intellectual property. The Company has agreed not to pledge or otherwise encumber its intellectual property, other than through grants of certain permitted non-
exclusive or exclusive licenses or other conveyances of its intellectual property.

The term loans will accrue interest at a fixed rate of 6.50% per annum. The Company is required to make payments of interest only on Term Loan A on a monthly
basis through and including April 1, 2016—extended from October 1, 2015, since the Company has satisfied specified conditions precedent related to the results of the
Company’s completed Phase 2 bunionectomy study of TRV 130—after which consecutive equal monthly payments of principal, plus accrued interest, will be due until
December 1, 2018. Both of these dates may be modified further with respect to the term loans, as applicable, as follows:

If the Company meets the conditions to draw Term Loan C on or before March 31, 2016, then the date until which the Company is required to make payments of
interest only will be extended from April 1, 2016 to October 1, 2016.

If the Company meets the condition to draw Term Loan C on or before March 31, 2016, and the Company has received net cash proceeds of at least $50,000,000
from its existing strategic partnership and collaborative license option agreement with Actavis or another strategic partnership in form and substance satisfactory to
the lenders, then the date until which consecutive equal monthly payments of principal, plus accrued interest, will be due will be extended from December 1, 2018
to September 1, 2019.

The Company has paid the lenders a facility fee of $175,000 in connection with the execution of the loan and security agreement. Upon the last payment date of the
amounts borrowed under the agreement, the Company will be required to pay the lenders a final payment fee equal to 6.1% of the term loans borrowed—increased from
5.25% since the Company has satisfied specified conditions precedent related to the results of the Company’s completed Phase 2 bunionectomy study of TRV130—and
subject to further adjustment as follows:

If the Company further meets the condition to draw Term Loan C on or before March 31, 2016, then the Company will be required to pay the lenders a final
payment fee equal to 6.6% of the term loans borrowed; and

If the Company further meets the condition to draw Term Loan C on or before March 31, 2016, and the Company has received net cash proceeds of at least
$50,000,000 from its existing strategic partnership and collaborative license option agreement with Actavis or another strategic partnership in form and substance

satisfactory to the lenders, then the Company will be required to pay the lenders a final payment fee equal to 7.0%.
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In addition, if the Company repays the term loans before the applicable maturity date, it will pay the lenders a prepayment fee of 3.00% of the total amount prepaid if
the prepayment occurs prior to the first anniversary of the funding of the applicable term loan, 2.00% percent of the total amount prepaid if the prepayment occurs between the
first and second anniversary of the funding of the applicable term loan, and 1.00% percent of the total amount prepaid if the prepayment occurs on or after the second
anniversary of the funding of the applicable term loan.

The loan and security agreement includes affirmative and restrictive covenants, including: (a) financial reporting requirements; (b) limitations on the incurrence of
indebtedness; (c) limitations on liens; (d) limitations on certain merger and acquisition transactions; (e) limitations on dispositions of certain assets; (f) limitations on
fundamental corporate changes (including changes in control); (g) limitations on investments; (h) limitations on payments and distributions and (i) other covenants. The
agreement also contains certain events of default, including for payment defaults, breaches of covenants, a material adverse change in the collateral, the Company’s business,
operations or condition (financial or otherwise), certain levies, attachments and other restraints on the Company’s business, insolvency, defaults under other agreements and
misrepresentations.

Three Point Capital, LLC served as a placement agent in connection with the term loans. The Company paid Three Point $65,000 upon execution of the loan and
security agreement and will be obligated to pay up to an additional $175,000 if the Company draws on Term Loan B and Term Loan C.

In connection with entering into the loan and security agreement, the Company issued to each of Oxford, Square 1 and Three Point warrants to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock. The warrants are exercisable, in whole or in part, immediately, and have a per share exercise price of $5.8610, which is the average closing price
of the Company’s common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market for the ten trading days prior to the effective date of the agreement. The warrants may be exercised on a
cashless basis. The warrants will terminate on the earlier of September 19, 2024 or the closing of a merger or consolidation transaction in which the Company is not the
surviving entity. If the Company borrows Term Loan B and/or Term Loan C, upon the funding of such Term Loan, the Company will issue additional warrants to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock, each with a per share exercise price of $5.8610 and on substantially the same terms as those contained in the warrants. The number of
warrants issued or issuable by the Company is as follows:

Maximum Number of Shares Maximum Number of Shares
Underlying Warrants Issuable Underlying Warrants Issuable
Shares Underlying Warrants Assuming Full Draw of Term Assuming Full Draw of Term
Entity Issued on the Effective Date Loan B Loan C
Oxford 4,875 40,217 40,217
Square 1 1,950 16,087 16,087
Three Point 853 7,038 7,038

In connection with the issuance of debt, on September 19, 2014, the Company issued to the lenders and the placement agent in the transaction warrants to purchase
an aggregate of 7,678 shares of the Company’s common stock. These detachable warrant instruments have qualified for equity classification and have been allocated upon the
relative fair value of the base instrument and the warrants, according to the guidance of ASC 470-20-25-2. The maximum aggregate number of shares underlying additional
warrants that can be issued by the Company to the lenders under the loan and security agreement and to Three Point under the placement agent arrangement is 126,684.

As of March 31, 2015, only Term Loan A has been issued, all of which remains outstanding as of such date. The initial maturity date is December 1, 2018 and the
loan bears interest at an annual rate of 6.5%. The loan is not convertible and is secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets. Interest expense of $32,500 was recorded
during the three months ended March 31, 2015.The Company incurred lender and third party costs of $225,988 and $106,545, respectively, related to the issuance of Term
Loan A. The lender costs are classified as a debt discount and the third party costs are classified as debt issuance costs. Per ASU 2015-03, debt discount and debt issuance
costs are to be presented as a contra-liability to the debt on the balance sheet. These costs will be amortized to interest expense over the life of Term Loan A using the effective
interest method. A total of $37,909 of debt discount and debt issuance costs was amortized to interest expense during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

The following table summarizes how the issuance of Term Loan A is reflected on the balance sheet at March 31, 2015:



March 31,

2015
Gross proceeds $ 2,000,000
Debt discount (190,513)
Debt issuance costs (89,820)
Carrying value $ 1,719,667
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6. Equity Incentive Plans

In 2008, the Company adopted the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended on February 29, 2008, January 7, 2010, July 8, 2010, December 10, 2010, June 23, 2011
and June 17, 2013 (collectively, the “2008 Plan”) that authorized the Company to grant up to 3,310,990 shares of common stock to eligible employees, directors and
consultants to the Company, in the form of restricted stock and stock options.

In 2013, the Company adopted the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended on May 14, 2014 and January 1, 2015 (collectively, the “2013 Plan”), that reserves for
issuance under the plan up to 3,284,326 shares of common stock. The 2013 Plan contains an “evergreen” provision, pursuant to which the number of shares of common stock
available for issuance under the plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each year beginning in 2015. The 2013 plan became effective upon the January 2014 IPO
and, as of such date, the Company may not make further grants under the 2008 plan. The 2013 plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, performance-based stock awards and other forms of equity compensation (collectively,
stock awards), all of which may be granted to employees, including officers, non- employee directors and consultants of the Company. Additionally, the 2013 plan provides
for the grant of cash and stock based performance awards.

Under both the 2008 and 2013 Plans, the amount, terms of grants and exercisability provisions are determined by the board of directors or its designee. The term of
the options may be up to 10 years, and options are exercisable in cash or as otherwise determined by the board of directors. Vesting generally occurs over a period of not
greater than four years.

The estimated grant-date fair value of the Company’s share-based awards is amortized ratably over the awards’ service periods. Share-based compensation expense
recognized was as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2015 2014
Research and development $ 227,801 $ 324,188
General and administrative 386,086 203,114
Total stock-based compensation $ 613,887 $ 527,302
A summary of stock option activity for the three months March 31, 2015 is as follows:
Options Outst g
‘Weighted
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Number Exercise Contractual
of Shares Price Term (in years)

Balance, December 31, 2014 3,574,450 $ 3.75 8.06

Granted 1,102,000

Exercised (106,392)

Forfeitures (75,631)
Balance, March 31, 2015 4,494,427 $ 4.50 8.30
Vested or expected to vest at March 31, 2015 4337547 $ 4.42
Exercisable at March 31, 2015 1,687,280 $ 2.56

The intrinsic value of the options exercisable as of March 31, 2015 was $7.0 million, based on the Company’s closing stock price of $6.52 per share and a weighted
average exercise price of $2.56 per share.
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options at the grant date. The Black-Scholes model requires the
Company to make certain estimates and assumptions, including estimating the fair value of the Company’s common stock, assumptions related to the expected price volatility
of the Company’s stock, the period during which the options will be outstanding, the rate of return on risk-free investments and the expected dividend yield for the Company’s
stock.

The per-share weighted-average grant date fair value of the options granted to employees and directors during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was
estimated at $4.21 and $4.91 per share, respectively, on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
Risk-free interest rate 1.69 % 1.89%
Expected term of options (in years) 6.25 6.06
Expected volatility 68.8 % 75.6%
Dividend yield 0% 0%

The weighted-average valuation assumptions were determined as follows:

Risk-free interest rate: The Company based the risk-free interest rate on the interest rate payable on U.S. Treasury securities in effect at the time of grant for a



period that is commensurate with the assumed expected option term.

Expected term of options: Due to its lack of sufficient historical data, the Company estimates the expected life of its employee stock options using the
“simplified” method, as prescribed in Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107, whereby the expected life equals the arithmetic average of the vesting term and
the original contractual term of the option.

Expected stock price volatility: The Company estimated the expected volatility based on actual historical volatility of the stock price of similar companies with
publicly-traded equity securities. The Company calculated the historical volatility of the selected companies by using daily closing prices over a period of the
expected term of the associated award. The companies were selected based on their enterprise value, risk profiles, position within the industry and with historical
share price information sufficient to meet the expected term of the associated award. A decrease in the selected volatility would have decreased the fair value of
the underlying instrument.

Expected annual dividend yield: The Company estimated the expected dividend yield based on consideration of its historical dividend experience and future
dividend expectations. The Company has not historically declared or paid dividends to stockholders. Moreover, it does not intend to pay dividends in the future,
but instead expects to retain any earnings to invest in the continued growth of the business. Accordingly, the Company assumed an expected dividend yield of
0.0%.

Estimated forfeiture rate: The Company’s estimated annual forfeiture rate for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 stock option grants was 9% and
7%, respectively, based on the historical forfeiture experience.

The fair value of the Company’s common stock, prior to the Company’s IPO, was determined by its board of directors with assistance from its management. The
board of directors and management considered numerous objective and subjective factors in the assessment of fair value, including the price for the Company’s preferred
stock that was sold to investors and the rights, preferences and privileges of the preferred stock and common stock, the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations during the relevant periods and the status of strategic initiatives. These estimates involved a significant level of judgment.

As of March 31, 2015, there was $9.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested options that will be recognized over the weighted
average remaining period of 3.22 years.

Shares Available for Future Grant

At March 31, 2015, the Company has the following shares available to be granted under the 2013 Plan:

Available at December 31, 2014 829,364

Authorized 1,569,646

Granted (1,102,000)

Forfeitures 75,631

Available at March 31, 2015 1,372,641
14
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Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

At March 31, 2015, the Company has reserved the following shares of common stock for issuance:

Stock options outstanding 4,494,427
Shares available for future grant under 2013 Plan 1,372,641
Warrants outstanding 30,258

5,897,326

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Licenses

On May 3, 2013, the Company entered into an option agreement and a license agreement with Actavis plc (formerly Forest Laboratories Holdings Limited), under
which the Company granted to Actavis an exclusive option to license its product candidate, TRV027. If Actavis exercises this option, the license agreement between the
Company and Actavis will become effective and Actavis will have an exclusive worldwide license to develop and commercialize TRV027 and specified related compounds.
At the Company’s request, Actavis will consider in good faith whether to grant the Company the right to co-promote the licensed products in the United States under the terms
to be agreed upon by the parties. Actavis will be responsible for subsequent development, regulatory approval and commercialization of TRV027 at Actavis’ sole cost and
expense.

Under the option agreement, the Company is conducting, at its expense, a Phase 2b trial of TRV027 in acute heart failure, or AHF. In March 2015, Actavis and the
Company signed a letter agreement wherein Actavis agreed to pay the Company $10.0 million to fund the expansion of this ongoing Phase 2b trial of TRV027 from 500
patients to 620 patients. As part of this agreement, the Company and Actavis agreed to certain testing and analysis with respect to the study. The extended Phase 2b trial and
related analysis are currently expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2016. Collaboration Revenue will be recognized on a straight line basis over the study period.
At the end of each reporting period, the Company will reassess the trial completion date and adjust the recognition period if applicable. The March 2015 letter agreement does
not otherwise amend the terms of the May 2013 option agreement. Actavis may exercise its option during the pendency of the Phase 2b clinical trial or during a specified time
period after the Company delivers the data from the Phase 2b clinical trial to Actavis. During the option period, the Company is not permitted to negotiate for or enter into any
agreement with a third party for the development and commercialization of TRV027 and its related compounds. Under specified circumstances linked to adverse changes in
the market or related to the results from the Phase 2b trial of TRV027, Actavis has the right to renegotiate the terms of the license agreement. If Actavis exercises such right,
the Company will be obligated to negotiate in good faith with Actavis for a period of time the terms of any new arrangement. If the Company and Actavis are unable to agree
on the terms of any new arrangement, then the option agreement will terminate and for a specified period of time thereafter the Company may not offer a license to any third
party on terms better than those last proposed by either the Company or Actavis during the negotiations.

If Actavis does not exercise its option during the specified period, the option will expire and the license agreement will not become effective. In that case, the
Company would be free to enter into a collaboration arrangement with another party for the development and commercialization of TRV027 or to pursue development and
commercialization on its own. The Company received no consideration upon the grant of the option to Actavis. If Actavis exercises the option, the Company would receive a
$65 million option exercise fee and could potentially receive up to $365 million depending upon the achievement of future development and commercial milestones. The
Company also could receive tiered royalties between 10% and 20% on net sales of licensed products worldwide, with the royalty rates on net sales of licensed products in the
United States being somewhat higher than the royalty rates on net sales of licensed products outside the United States. The term of the royalty on sales of TRV027 for a given
country would extend until the latest to occur of (I) 10 years from first commercial sale of TRV027 in that country, (ii) the expiration of the last to expire patent claiming
TRV027 that is sufficient to block the entrance of a generic version of the product, or (iii) the expiration of any period of exclusivity granted by applicable law or any



regulatory authority in such country that confers exclusive marketing rights on the product.

If the license agreement becomes effective, Actavis has the right to grant sublicenses under the license agreement to affiliates and third parties. Any sublicensing
does not act to relieve Actavis of any of its obligations under the license agreement, including Actavis’ obligation to make milestone payments to the Company with respect to
TRV027 or pay royalties to the Company on sales of TRV027 by such sublicensee. Under the license, both Actavis and the Company have the right to terminate the agreement
in the event of an uncured material breach or insolvency of the other party. In addition, Actavis is permitted to terminate the license agreement without cause at any time upon
prior written notice or immediately for product safety reasons. Following a termination of the license agreement, all licenses granted to Actavis would terminate, and Actavis
would grant the Company an exclusive royalty bearing license
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under specified patents and know-how to develop and commercialize reverted licensed products. If not terminated, the license agreement would remain in effect until the
expiration of the last royalty term for the last licensed product.

Actavis participated in the Series C Preferred Stock financing and purchased $30 million of Series C Preferred Stock. Because the Series C Preferred Stock was
acquired at the same time as the option agreement, management considered whether the Preferred Stock was issued at fair value and if not, whether the consideration received
for the Preferred Stock should be allocated in the financial statements in a manner differently than the price stated in the agreement. The Series C Preferred Stock acquired by
Actavis was acquired at the same time and at the same price per share as all of the other investors in the Series C Preferred Stock financing and therefore the preferred stock
sold to Actavis was deemed to be issued at fair value and no value was allocated to the option agreement. The Series C Preferred Stock held by Actavis was converted into
common shares on a one-for-6.2 basis upon consummation of the Company’s IPO.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is not involved in any legal proceeding that it expects to have a material effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and result of operations should be read in conjunction with our 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Overview
Using our proprietary product platform, we have identified and are developing the following four differentiated product candidates:

TRV130: We are developing TRV 130 as a first-line treatment for patients experiencing moderate to severe pain where IV administration is preferred. We are
currently conducting a second Phase 2 trial of TRV 130 with the goal of evaluating analgesic efficacy following soft-tissue surgery and exploring TRV130’s safety
and tolerability profile benchmarked to morphine. We expect to report top-line data from this trial in the third quarter of 2015. In November 2014, we announced
top-line data from our Phase 2a/b clinical trial of TRV 130 in postoperative pain following bunionectomy surgery. At doses of 2 mg and 3 mg of TRV130
administered every three hours, the trial achieved its primary endpoint of statistically greater pain reduction than placebo for 48 hours, which we believe
demonstrates proof of concept for TRV130. The 3 mg dose of TRV130 also showed statistically superior analgesic efficacy over the 48-hour trial period compared
to 4 mg of morphine administered every four hours. There were no serious adverse events reported in the trial, which we believe suggests that these levels of pain
relief can be achieved safely. Based on the data from the recently completed Phase 2a/b study, we plan to move into Phase 3 preparations, which we expect to
occur in parallel with the second Phase 2 soft tissue trial for TRV 130 that we commenced in December 2014. We also anticipate that we will initiate a Phase 3
clinical trial for TRV130 in the first quarter of 2016. We hold a U.S. patent covering the composition of matter and methods of use for TRV130. We have retained
all worldwide development and commercialization rights to TRV130, and plan to commercialize it for use in acute care settings such as hospitals and ambulatory
surgery centers if it receives regulatory approval.

TRV734: We are developing TRV734 as a first-line, orally administered compound for the treatment of moderate to severe acute and chronic pain. We have
completed both a Phase 1 single ascending dose clinical trial and a Phase 1 multiple ascending dose clinical study and reported positive results from these studies
in June 2014 and February 2015, respectively. We are commencing a pharmacokinetic study with various formulations of TRV734 to prepare for phase 2
development. We have retained all worldwide development and commercialization rights to TRV734.

TRV027: We are developing TRV027 for the treatment of acute heart failure, or AHF. In early 2014 we initiated a Phase 2b clinical trial of TRV027 (BLAST-
AHF) for the treatment of AHF. In January 2015, we conducted a planned interim analysis, evaluating data from approximately 250 patients. Upon reviewing the
data, the data safety monitoring board (DSMB) and the BLAST- AHF Steering Committee recommended that future enrollment be weighted to the most
promising dose of 5 mg/hr. We announced in March 2015 that remaining enrollment will be weighted 2:1:2:1 for placebo, 1 mg/hr, 5 mg/hr, and 25 mg/hr,
respectively, and that we have increased target enrollment in the study from 500 patients to 620 patients. In addition, the DSMB and Steering Committee
determined that patients with lower baseline systolic blood pressure could safely enroll in the study; inclusion criteria have been modified accordingly.

Actavis plc, or Actavis, which holds an exclusive option to license TRV027, has fully funded this expansion of the study via a $10 million payment to us to defray
the external and internal costs of increasing the study sample size. As a result of the increased target enrollment, we now expect to release top-line data in the first
half of 2016.

TRV250: We have identified a new product candidate, TRV250, from our preclinical d-opioid receptor program focused on central nervous system, or CNS,
indications and plan to advance TRV250 to preclinical studies in 2015 that would support our submission of an investigational new drug application, or IND, to
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, in 2016.

We were incorporated and commenced operations in the fourth quarter of 2007. Our operations to date have included organizing and staffing our company, business
planning, raising capital, developing TRV027, TRV130 and TRV734, and discovering TRV250. We have financed our operations primarily through private placements and
public offerings of our equity securities and debt borrowings. As of March 31, 2015, we had an accumulated deficit of $144.9 million. Our net loss was $12.9 million and
$9.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Our ability to become and remain profitable depends on our ability to generate revenue. We
do not expect to generate significant revenue unless and until we or a collaborator obtain marketing approval for and commercialize TRV027, TRV130, TRV734 or TRV250.
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In September 2014, we announced we had entered into a $35.0 million senior secured tranched term loan credit facility with Oxford Finance LLC and Square 1
Bank, of which we have drawn $2.0 million as of March 31, 2015. The facility also provides for up to two additional term loan tranches of $16.5 million each. Based on the
top-line results of the Phase 2a/b clinical trial of TRV 130 announced in November 2014, we have met the conditions to draw the $16.5 million second tranche under the credit
facility and have may draw this between October 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015. We may opt to draw the third term loan tranche if we receive positive data from the Phase 2
clinical trial of TRV027.

We expect to incur significant expenses and operating losses for the foreseeable future as we continue the development and clinical trials of, and seek regulatory
approval for, our product candidates. If we obtain regulatory approval for any of our product candidates, we expect to incur significant commercialization expenses.
Furthermore, following our IPO in January 2014, we have incurred and expect to continue to incur significant legal, accounting, investor relations and other costs associated
with operating as a public company. We will need to obtain substantial additional funding in connection with our continuing operations. If we are unable to raise capital when
needed or on attractive terms, we could be forced to delay, reduce or eliminate our research and development programs or any future commercialization efforts. We will seek
to fund our operations through the sale of equity, debt financings or other sources, including potential additional collaborations. However, we may be unable to raise
additional funds or enter into such other agreements when needed on favorable terms, or at all. If we fail to raise capital or enter into such other arrangements as, and when,
needed, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue the development and/or commercialization of one or more of our product candidates.

Option and License Agreements with Actavis plc

On May 3, 2013, we entered into an option agreement and a license agreement with Actavis plc (formerly Forest Laboratories Holdings Limited), under which we
granted to Actavis an exclusive option to license our product candidate, TRV027. If Actavis exercises this option, the license agreement will become effective and Actavis
will have an exclusive worldwide license to develop and commercialize TRV027 and specified related compounds. Actavis will be responsible for subsequent development,
regulatory approval and commercialization of TRV027 at Actavis’ expense. At our request, Actavis will consider in good faith whether to grant us the right to co-promote the
licensed products in the United States under terms to be agreed upon by the parties, but Actavis has no obligation to grant us such right.

Under the option agreement, we will conduct, at our expense, a Phase 2b clinical trial of TRV027 in AHF. Actavis may exercise its option at any time during the
Phase 2b clinical trial or during a specified time period after we deliver the data from the Phase 2b clinical trial to Actavis. During the option period, we are not permitted to
negotiate for or enter into any agreement with a third party for the development and commercialization of TRV027 and its related compounds. Under specified circumstances
linked to adverse changes in the market or related to the results from the Phase 2b clinical trial of TRV027, Actavis has the right to renegotiate the terms of the license
agreement. If Actavis exercises such right, we will be obligated to negotiate in good faith with Actavis for a period of time the terms of any new arrangement. If we and
Actavis are unable to agree on the terms of any new arrangement, then the option agreement will terminate and for a specified period of time thereafter we may not offer a
license to any third party on terms better than those last proposed by either us or Actavis during the negotiations. If Actavis does not exercise its option during the specified
period, the option will expire and the license agreement will not become effective. In that case, we would be free to enter into a collaboration arrangement with another party
for the development and commercialization of TRV027 or to pursue development and commercialization on our own.

We received no consideration upon the grant of the option to Actavis. In March 2015, Actavis and we signed a letter agreement wherein Actavis agreed to pay
$10.0 million to fund the expansion of the ongoing Phase 2b trial from 500 patients to 620 patients. The $10.0 million received in March 2015 was recorded as deferred
revenue. The collaboration revenue will be recorded on a straight-line basis through the expected term of the trial. The March 2015 letter agreement does not otherwise amend
the terms of the May 2013 option agreement. If Actavis exercises the option, we would receive a $65 million option exercise fee and could potentially receive up to
$365 million in additional payments depending upon the achievement of future development and commercial milestones. We also could receive tiered royalties between 10%
and 20% on net sales of licensed products worldwide, subject to specified deductions and offsets, with the royalty rates on net sales of licensed products in the United States
being somewhat higher than the royalty rates on net sales of licensed products outside the United States. The term of the royalty on sales of TRV027 for a given country
would extend until the latest to occur of (i) ten years from first commercial sale of TRV027 in that country, (ii) the expiration of the last to expire patent claiming TRV027
that is sufficient to block the entrance of a generic version of the product, or (iii) the expiration of any period of exclusivity granted by applicable law or any regulatory
authority in such country that confers exclusive marketing rights on the product.

If the license agreement becomes effective, Actavis has the right to grant sublicenses under the license agreement to affiliates and third parties. Any sublicensing
does not relieve Actavis of any of its obligations under the license agreement, including Actavis’ obligation to make milestone payments to us with respect to TRV027 or pay

royalties to us on sales of TRV027 by such sublicensee.

18

Table of Contents

Under the license, both we and Actavis have the right to terminate the agreement in the event of an uncured material breach or insolvency of the other party. In addition,
Actavis is permitted to terminate the license agreement without cause at any time upon prior written notice or immediately for product safety reasons. Following a termination
of the license agreement, all licenses granted to Actavis would terminate, and Actavis would grant to us an exclusive royalty bearing license under specified patents and know-
how to develop and commercialize reverted licensed products. If not terminated, the license agreement would remain in effect until the expiration of the last royalty term for
the last licensed product.

Senior Secured Tranched Term Loan Credit Facility

In September 2014, we entered into a loan and security agreement with Oxford Finance LLC and Square 1 Bank, or the lenders, pursuant to which they have agreed
to lend us up to $35.0 million in a three-tranche series of term loans. Upon initially entering into the agreement, we borrowed $2.0 million. On April 13, 2015, we amended
the agreement with the lenders to change the draw period for Term Loan B. As amended, we may now, at our sole discretion, borrow from the lenders:

$16.5 million, at any time beginning on October 1, 2015 and ending on December 31, 2015, since we have satisfied specified conditions precedent related to the
results of our Phase 2 bunionectomy trial of TRV130; and

an additional $16.5 million, at any time on or before March 31, 2016, subject to the satisfaction of specified conditions related to the results of our Phase 2b
clinical trial of TRV027.

Borrowings accrue interest at a fixed rate of 6.50% per annum. We are required to make payments of interest only on borrowings under this agreement on a monthly
basis through and including April 1, 2016, which we refer to as the interest only termination date—extended from October 1, 2015, since we have satisfied specified
conditions precedent related to the results of our recently concluded Phase 2 bunionectomy study of TRV 130—after which payments of principal in equal monthly
installments and accrued interest will be due until the loan matures on December 1, 2018. Both the interest only termination date and the maturity date may be further
modified as follows if we meet the conditions related to the Phase 2b trial of TRV027 by March 31, 2016:

the interest only termination date will be extended until October 1, 2016.

the maturity date will be extended to September 1, 2019 if we have received net cash proceeds of at least $50.0 million from our existing option and license with
Actavis or another strategic partnership satisfactory to the lenders.



We paid the lenders a facility fee of $175,000 in connection with the execution of the agreement. Upon the last payment date of the amounts borrowed under the
agreement, we will be required to pay a final payment fee ranging from 6.1% to 7.0% of the aggregate amounts borrowed. In addition, if we repay the borrowings prior to the
maturity date, we will be obligated to pay a prepayment fee of 3.0% of the total amount prepaid if the prepayment occurs prior to the first anniversary of the funding of the
applicable tranche, 2.0% percent of the total amount prepaid if the prepayment occurs between the first and second anniversary of the funding of the applicable tranche, and
1.0% of the total amount prepaid if the prepayment occurs on or after the second anniversary of the funding of the applicable tranche.

Our obligations are secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all of our assets, other than intellectual property. In addition, we have agreed not to
pledge or otherwise encumber our intellectual property, with specified exceptions.

We used a placement agent in connection with the agreement. We paid the agent $65,000 upon execution of the agreement and will be obligated to pay up to an
additional $175,000 if we draw on the second and third tranches.

In connection with entering into the agreement, we issued to the lenders warrants to purchase an aggregate of 7,678 shares of our common stock. These warrants are
exercisable immediately and have an exercise price of $5.8610 per share. The warrants may be exercised on a cashless basis and will terminate on the earlier of September 19,
2024 or the closing of a merger or consolidation transaction in which we are not the surviving entity. If we draw on the second or third tranches, we will issue additional
warrants to purchase shares of our common stock, each with an exercise price of $5.8610 per share and on substantially the same terms as those contained in the initial
warrants. The number of shares underlying these additional warrants will depend on the amount of additional borrowings we make, but will not exceed 126,684.
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Components of Operating Results
Revenue

To date, we have derived revenue principally from research grants and collaboration arrangements. In March 2015, Actavis and we signed a letter agreement wherein
Actavis agreed to pay us $10.0 million to fund the expansion of this ongoing Phase 2b trial of TRV027 from 500 patients to 620 patients. The payment was recorded as
deferred revenue and will be recorded on a straight-line basis through the expected term of the trial.

We have not generated any revenue from commercial product sales. In the future, if any of our product candidates currently under development is approved for
commercial sale, we may generate revenue from product sales, or alternatively, we may choose to select a collaborator to commercialize our product candidates in all or
selected markets.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist principally of salaries and related costs for our non-research and development personnel; stock-based compensation and
travel expenses for such individuals; facility-related costs; communication expenses; professional fees for legal, patent prosecution and facilities maintenance consulting; and
accounting services.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for research and the development of our product candidates. In addition, research and
development expenses include salaries and related costs for our research and development personnel and stock-based compensation and travel expenses for such individuals.

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and are tracked by discovery program and subsequently by product candidate once a product candidate has
been selected for development. We record costs for some development activities, such as clinical trials, based on an evaluation of the progress to completion of specific tasks
using data such as patient enrollment, clinical site activations or information provided to us by our vendors.

Change in Fair Value of Warrant Liability

Upon the IPO, an outstanding warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of Series B preferred stock was converted into a warrant to purchase up to 20,161 shares of the
Company’s common stock and remains outstanding with a fair value recorded as a liability of $91,264 at March 31, 2015, as it contains a cash settlement feature upon certain
strategic transactions. The fair value of the warrant classified as a liability on each re-measurement date is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Other Income / Expense

Other income consists principally of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalent balances, marketable securities and miscellaneous income attributable to the
sale of research and development tax credits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On April 7, 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-03,Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs(“ASU 2015-03”). ASU 2015-03
requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the Balance Sheets as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability. While the standard is retrospectively effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, early adoption is permitted for any annual reporting period or interim period for which the entity’s financial
statements have not yet been issued. We have elected early adoption in the current period that resulted in a balance sheet adjustment as of December 31, 2014 of $98,401 to
Other assets and Loans payable, net. Our adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on our results of operations or cash flows.

JOBS Act
The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, reduce reporting requirements for an “emerging growth company.” As an emerging growth company,
we have elected to not take advantage of the extended transition period afforded by the JOBS Act for the implementation of new or revised accounting standards and, as a

result, will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014



Three Months Ended

March 31,
2015 2014 Change
Revenue:
Collaboration revenue $ 625,000 $ — $ 625,000
Total revenue 625,000 — 625,000
Operating expenses:
General and administrative 3,089,622 2,020,865 1,068,757
Research and development 10,598,993 7,633,509 2,965,484
Total operating expenses 13,688,615 9,654,374 4,034,214
Loss from operations (13,063,615) (9,654,374) (3,409,241)
Other income (expense):
Change in fair value of warrant liability (8,413) 98,922 (107,335)
Miscellaneous income 173,535 176,015 (2,480)
Interest income 39,469 6,023 33,446
Interest expense (70,621) — (70,621)
Total other income 133,970 280,960 (146,990 )
Net loss and comprehensive loss (12,929,645) (9,373,414) (3,556,231)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock — (28,521) 28,521
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (12,929,645)  § (9,401,935) § (3,527,710)

Revenue

Collaboration revenue increased $625,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2015 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to our entry into a
letter agreement with Actavis on March 5, 2015. Under this agreement, Actavis paid us $10.0 million, which was recorded as deferred revenue, to fund the expansion of the
ongoing Phase 2b trial from 500 patients to 620 patients. The collaboration revenue will be recorded on a straight-line basis through the expected term of the trial.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.1 million, or 53%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the same period in 2014 primarily as
a result of increased headcount and associated salary, bonus and stock compensation expenses, recruiting fees and market research expenditures.

Research and development expense

Research and development expenses increased by $3.0 million, or 39%, from $7.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $10.6 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2015. The following table summarizes our research and development expenses:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2015 2014
TRV027 (external costs) $ 2,121,196 $ 2,582,958
TRV130 (external costs) 5,134,667 1,971,881
TRV734 (external costs) 466,822 568,675
TRV250 (external costs) 228,669 368,175
Stock-based compensation 227,801 324,188
Other personnel related costs 1,995,786 1,433,796
Other research and development 424,052 383,836
$ 10,598,993 $ 7,633,509
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The increase was primarily driven by an increase of $3.2 million in clinical research expenses associated with the Phase 2a/b clinical trial of TRV130. The remaining
increase was primarily driven by costs associated with increased headcount, including higher salary and bonus costs.

Change in fair value of warrant liability

We recognized a loss of $8,413 and a gain of $98,922 for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, for the change in fair value on revaluation
of our warrant liability associated with our warrants outstanding. At the time of the IPO, the majority of the preferred stock warrants were net exercised into shares of common
stock The remaining preferred stock warrant was converted into a common stock warrant to purchase 20,161 shares of common stock. The common stock warrant had a fair
value recorded as a liability of $91,264 at March 31, 2015 as it contains a cash settlement feature upon certain strategic transactions. We will continue to adjust the liability
related to this warrant for changes in fair value until the earlier of the exercise or expiration of the warrant.

Miscellaneous income

Miscellaneous income of $173,535 and $176,015 was recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, due to the sale of
Pennsylvania research and development tax credits.

Interest income

Interest income of $39,469 was recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2015 due to income associated with the investment of funds in marketable
securities. Interest income of $6,023 was recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to income associated with the investment of funds in U.S. government
securities with one month maturity terms.
Interest expense

We recorded interest expense of $70,621 during the three months ended March 31, 2015, consisting of interest related to our loans originating in September 2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources



We incurred net losses of $12.9 million and $9.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Net cash used in operating activities was
$6.0 million and $6.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. At March 31, 2015, we had an accumulated deficit of $144.9 million,
working capital of $90.4 million, cash and cash equivalents of $29.1 million and marketable securities of $71.6 million. Historically, we have financed our operations
principally through private placements of preferred stock. In February 2014, we completed our IPO. In December 2014, we completed a follow-on offering of common stock.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2015 2014

Net cash (used in) provided by:

Operating activities $ (6,034,638) $ (6,156,481)

Investing activities (1,213,809) (20,629)

Financing activities 178,783 59,556,578
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (7,069,664) $ 53,379,468

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $6.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, consisting primarily of a net loss of $12.9 million partially offset
by noncash adjustments of $0.7 million and changes in operating assets and liabilities of $6.2 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities were primarily driven by an
increase of deferred revenue of $9.4 million associated with the payment received from Actavis in March 2015 partially offset by an increase in prepaid expenses and other
assets of $0.8 million and a decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $2.4 million.
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Net cash used in operating activities was $6.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and consisted primarily of a net loss of $9.4 million partially offset
by noncash adjustments of $0.5 million and changes in operating assets and liabilities of $2.7 million. The significant factors that contributed to the change in operating assets
and liabilities included increases in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $2.2 million and a decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets of $0.5 million. The decrease
in prepaid expenses and other assets was primarily due to prepaid initial public offering costs incurred in 2013 partially offset by costs that were prepaid in the first quarter of
2014 in association with the startup of the Phase 2b trial for TRV027.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $1.2 million and $20,629, respectively, and in 2015 consisted
primarily of investments in marketable securities. Both periods presented also include expenditures related to leasehold improvements and the purchase of capital equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $178,783 for the three months ended March 31, 2015, which was primarily due to proceeds from exercises of common
stock options.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $59.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, which was primarily due to the issuance of common stock in
our IPO as well as proceeds from exercises of common stock options.

Operating and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We have not achieved profitability since our inception and we expect to continue to incur net losses for the foreseeable future. We expect our cash expenditures to
increase in the near term as we fund our ongoing Phase 2 clinical trials of TRV027 and TRV 130, any future Phase 3 clinical trials of TRV130, our clinical development of
TRV734, and our preclinical development of TRV250. Additionally, if and when we believe a regulatory approval of a product candidate appears likely, we anticipate that
our payroll and other general and administrative expenses will increase as we prepare for commercial operations, particularly with respect to expenses associated with the sales
and marketing of any future products. As a result of our 2014 IPO, we are a publicly traded company and incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we were
not required to incur as a private company. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as rules adopted by the SEC and the NASDAQ Stock Market, requires public
companies to implement specified corporate governance practices that were inapplicable to us as a private company. These rules and regulations have increased our legal and
financial compliance costs and make some activities more time-consuming and costly.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, the $16.5 million that we are eligible to draw in the fourth quarter of 2015 under the
second tranche of our credit facility, together with interest thereon, and the $10.0 million received from Actavis in March 2015 will be sufficient to fund our operating
expenses and capital expenditure requirements through the fourth quarter of 2016. However, we anticipate that we will need to raise substantial additional financing in the
future to fund our operations. To meet these additional cash requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity or convertible securities that may result in dilution to our
stockholders. In April 2015, we entered into an at the market issuance Common Stock Sales Agreement with Cowen and Company, LLC, or Cowen, under which we may
offer and sell, from time to time at our sole discretion, shares of our common stock, having an aggregate offering price up to $40 million through Cowen as our sales agent. If
we raise additional funds through the issuance of convertible securities, these securities could have rights senior to those of our common stock and could contain covenants
that restrict our operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain additional equity or debt financing on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Our future capital
requirements will depend on many factors, including:

the progress, timing and results of the Phase 2 clinical programs for TRV130 and TRV027;

whether Actavis exercises its option to license TRV027;

our ability to enter into collaborative agreements for the development and commercialization of our product candidates, for example TRV734;
the number and development requirements of any other product candidates that we pursue;

the scope, progress, results and costs of researching and developing our product candidates or any future product candidates, both in the United States and in
territories outside the United States;
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the costs, timing and outcome of regulatory review of our product candidates or any future product candidates, both in the United States and in territories outside
the United States;

the costs and timing of future commercialization activities, including product manufacturing, marketing, sales and distribution, for any of our product candidates
for which we receive marketing approval;

any product liability or other lawsuits related to our products;
the expenses needed to attract and retain skilled personnel;
the revenue, if any, received from commercial sales of our product candidates for which we receive marketing approval; and

the costs involved in preparing, filing and prosecuting patent applications, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights and defending our intellectual
property-related claims, both in the United States and in territories outside the United States.

Please see “Risk Factors” section of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC and which are incorporated herein by reference, for additional risks
associated with our substantial capital requirements.

Option and License Agreements and Other Commitments

For a description of our agreement with Actavis, see “—Option and License Agreement with Actavis plc” above.

In addition, in the course of normal business operations, we have agreements with contract service providers to assist in the performance of our research and
development and manufacturing activities. We can elect to discontinue the work under these agreements at any time. We could also enter into additional collaborative

research, contract research, manufacturing and supplier agreements in the future, which may require upfront payments and even long-term commitments of cash.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

This discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, or GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. In accordance with GAAP, we base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that

we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Please see the “Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates” section of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC
and which are incorporated herein by reference, for full detail. We have not made any significant changes to their critical accounting policies during the current quarter.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined by applicable SEC regulations.
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of March 31, 2015, the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Based on our evaluation, we believe that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the date of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q have been designed and are
functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. We believe that a controls system, no matter how well designed
and operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has not performed an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting during any period in accordance
with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. As a result, it is possible that, had our independent registered public accounting firm performed an evaluation of our internal
control over financial reporting in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, material weaknesses and significant control deficiencies may have been
identified. However, for as long as we remain an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act, we intend to take advantage of the exemption permitting us not to
comply with the requirement that our independent registered public accounting firm provide an attestation on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART 11
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS



There have been no material changes in our risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
(a) Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we sold no shares of unregistered securities.
(b) Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities

There has been no material change in the expected use of the net proceeds from our initial public offering as described in our final prospectus filed with the SEC
pursuant to Rule 424(b).

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Where so indicated by footnote, exhibits that were previously filed are
incorporated by reference. For exhibits incorporated by reference, the location of the exhibit in the previous filing is indicated.

Exhibit
Number Description
10.1+ Trevena, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, originally filed with the SEC on January 5, 2015).
10.2 Letter Agreement dated March 5, 2015 between Trevena, Inc. and Actavis plc (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K, originally filed with the SEC on March 10, 2015).
10.3 First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated April 13, 2015, by and among Trevena, Inc., as borrower, Oxford Finance LLC, as collateral
agent and lender, and Square 1 Bank, as lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, originally filed
with the SEC on April 13, 2015).
10.4* 4t Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2015, by and between the Registrant and Pios Grande KOP Business Center, L.P.
(successor-in-interest to KOPBC, Inc.).
10.5%+ Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement under 2013 Equity Incentive Plan.
31.1%* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
31.2* Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
32.1%* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2% Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101* The following financial information from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 31, 2015,
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formatted in XBRL(eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, (ii) Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, (iii) Statement of Stockholders’ Equity as of March 31, 2015,
(iv) Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 and (v) Notes to Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text.

* Filed herewith.
+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 7, 2015

TREVENA, INC.
By: /s/ ROBERTO CUCA
Roberto Cuca
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.4 4t Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2015, by and between the Registrant and Pios Grande KOP Business Center, L.P.
(successor-in-interest to KOPBC, Inc.).
10.5+ Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement under 2013 Equity Incentive Plan.
31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
32.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following financial information from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 31, 2015, formatted in XBRL(eXtensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, (ii) Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, (iii) Statement of Stockholders’ Equity as of March 31, 2015, (iv) Statements of Cash Flows for the
three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 and (v) Notes to Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text.
+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
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Exhibit 10.4
4" AMENDMENT TO COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

This 4" AMENDMENT TO COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT
(“4" Amendment”) is made as of the 30th day of January, 2015, (the “Effective Date™) by and betweenPIOS GRANDE KOP BUSINESS CENTER, L.P, a Delaware
limited partnership (“Landlord”), and TREVENA, INC., a Delaware corporation (‘“Tenant”).

RECITALS:

A. Pursuant to the Commercial Lease Agreement dated August 4, 2008, between Landlord’s predecessor-in-interest, KOPBC, L.P., and Tenant, as amended by
the First Amendment to Commercial Lease dated December 8, 2008 (the “First Amendment”), as amended by the Second Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement dated
July 3, 2013 (the “Second Amendment”), and as further amended by the Third Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement dated February 21, 2014 (the “Third
Amendment,” together with the First Amendment and Second Amendment, the “Lease”), Tenant currently leases premises consisting of approximately 14,557 rentable square
feet (as further described in the Lease, the “Demised Premises”) in the King of Prussia Business Center located on the first floor at 1018 West Eighth Avenue (the “Building”),
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania.

B. Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Lease to (i) provide for Tenant’s lease from Landlord of an additional 2,157 rentable square feet of space adjacent
to Tenant’s existing space, which additional space is currently leased to Innovation Tap LLC, and commonly referred to as Suite H as reflected on Exhibit A hereto (the “New
Expansion Premises”), subject to the terms, covenants and conditions set forth below; and (ii) otherwise modify the Lease as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant, intending to be legally bound, covenant and agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals; Definitions. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full herein. All capitalized terms not
defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed them in the Lease.

2. RESERVED

3. Demised Premises. On the “New Expansion Commencement Date,” which is expected to be on June 1, 2015, but in no event later than August 1, 2015, and
continuing throughout the Lease Term, the Demised Premises hereinafter shall be comprised of the New Expansion Premises, the Expansion Premises, and the Original
Demised Premises. On the Effective Date, the Demised Premises shall consist of 16,714 rentable square feet, and “Tenant’s Proportionate Share” shall be 9.93%. Tenant
accepts the Demised Premises, including the New Expansion Premises, in their “AS IS” condition as of the Effective Date of this 4" Amendment. Tenant acknowledges that
neither Landlord nor Landlord’s agents, representatives, employees,

servants or attorneys have made any representations or promises, whether express or implied, concerning the condition of the Demised Premises, including the New Expansion
Premises. In the event that Innovation Tap LLC does not vacate the New Expansion Premises by August 1, 2015, Tenant shall have the sole option to: (i) extend its right to
occupy the New Expansion Premises in accordance with the terms of this 4 Amendment, or (ii) terminate this 4" Amendment, at which time this 4" Amendment shall be

null and void and of no further force or effect, and Tenant shall have no further liability hereunder. If Tenant elects to extend this 4 Amendment until Innovation Tap LLC
vacates the New Expansion Premises, Tenant shall pay Rent in accordance with Schedule A (discussed in Paragraph 4 below), in the amount reflected in the column entitled
“TOTAL LESS NEW EXPANSION.” If Tenant terminates this 4" Amendment as provided in this Paragraph 3, then the Right of First Offer option provided in Paragraph 5
of the Third Amendment automatically shall be revived and continue in full force and effect.

Promptly after the New Expansion Commencement Date, Landlord and Tenant shall, at the request of either, execute an acknowledgment in the form set forth in
Exhibit B specifying said New Expansion Commencement Date. The failure of either party to execute or deliver such instrument shall not modify the New Expansion
Commencement Date.

4. Rent. Commencing on the New Expansion Commencement Date and continuing throughout the Lease Term, Tenant shall pay to Landlord Minimum Rent
for the Original Demised Premises, Expansion Premises and the New Expansion Premises (a total of 16,714 rentable square feet) as provided under the column labeled

TOTAL in Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

As of the New Expansion Commencement Date, the Rent schedules recited in Paragraph 4(b) of the Second Amendment and in Paragraph 3 of the Third Amendment
hereby are superseded and replaced in their entirety by Schedule A attached to this 4" Amendment.

The methodology for the calculation and payment of Additional Rent remains unchanged.

5. Termination Option. Paragraph 4 of the Third Amendment hereby is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
(a) Entire Demised Premises. At any time after May 31, 2018, Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease, and the 4" Amendment (“Total Termination

Option”) by giving Landlord written notice that it is terminating the Lease and the 4™ Amendment with respect to the entire Demised Premises and vacating the Demised
Premises on or before the termination date stated in the written notice (the “Total Termination Date”). The written termination notice shall be provided to Landlord at least
nine (9) months prior to the Total Termination Date and in no event shall the Total Termination Date be earlier than June 1, 2018. Together with said written notice of
termination, Tenant shall pay Landlord by certified check or wire transfer of immediately available funds, a termination fee in the amount of One Hundred Fifty Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($150,000.00) (the “Total Termination Fee™). If Tenant shall fail to pay the Total Termination Fee, as provided above, this Total Termination Option and any
notice given under this Paragraph 5(a) shall be void and of no further force or effect.

(b) New Expansion Premises Only. At any time after May 31, 2018, Tenant shall have the right to partially terminate this 4" Amendment to the Lease (“Partial
Termination Option”) by giving Landlord written notice that it is terminating the Lease with respect to the New Expansion Premises only and vacating the New Expansion
Premises on or before the termination date stated in the written notice (the “Partial Termination Date”). The written termination notice shall be provided to Landlord at least
nine (9) months prior to the Partial Termination Date and in no event shall the Partial Termination Date be earlier than June 1, 2018. Together with said written notice of
termination, Tenant shall pay Landlord by certified check a termination fee in the amount of Twenty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($20,000.00) (the “Partial Termination
Fee”). If Tenant shall fail to pay the Partial Termination Fee, as provided above, this Partial Termination Option and any notice given under this Paragraph 5(b) shall be void
and of no further force or effect.

(c) Minimum Rent to Be Adjusted. If Tenant complies in all respects with the requirements of Paragraph 5(b) and effects the Partial Termination Option,
Minimum Rent for the Original Demised Premises and the Expansion Premises shall be remitted to Landlord in the amounts recited under the column labeled “TOTAL LESS
NEW EXPANSION” on Schedule A.



(d) Tenant’s Proportionate Share. In the event Tenant effects the Partial Termination Option, Tenant’s Proportionate Share shall be 8.64%.

(e) Second Amendment Termination Option. The deletion of Paragraph 4 of the Third Amendment as stated in the first paragraph of this Paragraph 5 of the
4t Amendment shall not revive or reinstate Paragraph 18 of the Second Amendment.

6. Brokers. Landlord and Tenant each represents and warrants to the other that neither it nor its officers or agents nor anyone acting on its behalf has dealt
with any real estate broker in the negotiating or making of this 4" Amendment other than, for the Landlord, Cushman & Wakefield of Pennsylvania, Inc. Each party agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless the other from any claim or claims, and costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the indemnified party in
conjunction with any such claim or claims of any other broker or brokers to a commission in connection with this 4" Amendment as a result of the actions of the indemnifying
party.

7. Estoppel. Tenant represents and warrants that it is the sole owner and holder of the Tenant’s interest in the Lease, and it has not assigned, mortgaged,
hypothecated, sublet, or otherwise alienated all or any part of its interest in the Lease or the Demised Premises. Except as herein expressly amended, modified and
supplemented, all of the terms, conditions and provisions of the Lease remain in full force and effect as heretofore written and, as hereby amended, modified and
supplemented, are hereby ratified and confirmed in every respect. Tenant takes the occasion of the execution of this 4" Amendment to confirm that, to the best of Tenant’s
knowledge: (i) neither Landlord nor Tenant is in default under the Lease; and (ii) Tenant has no right to any rent credit, free rent, offset, set-off or any other such claim against
Landlord under the Lease.

8. Authority. The parties hereto represent and warrant to each other that each has full right and authority to enter into this 4" Amendment and that the person
signing this 4" Amendment on behalf of Landlord and Tenant, respectively, has the requisite authority for such act.

9. Counterparts. This 4" Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all such
counterparts shall constitute one agreement.

10. No Other Modifications; Ratification; Conflicts. (a) Except as expressly amended hereby, the Lease remains unmodified and in full force and effect. In the
event of a conflict between the terms of this 4" Amendment and the Lease, the terms of this 4 Amendment shall control. Except as provided in Paragraph 3 above,
Paragraph 5 of the Third Amendment (Right of First Offer) having been exercised, Tenant has no further rights under said Paragraph 5, which shall hereinafter be of no
further force or effect.

11. Confession of Judgment. LANDLORD SHALL HAVE THE FOLLOWING RIGHTS TO CONFESS JUDGMENT AGAINST TENANT AND ALL
PERSONS CLAIMING THROUGH TENANT, FOR POSSESSION OF THE DEMISED PREMISES:

(1) AFTER AN EVENT OF DEFAULT WHICH REMAINS UNCURED AND IS CONTINUING FOLLOWING NOTICE TO TENANT AS PROVIDED IN
THE LEASE, OR WHEN THIS LEASE SHALL BE TERMINATED BY REASON OF A DEFAULT BY TENANT, EITHER DURING THE ORIGINAL TERM OF THIS
LEASE OR ANY RENEWAL OR EXTENSION THEREOF, AND ALSO WHEN THE TERM HEREBY CREATED OR ANY EXTENSION THEREOF SHALL HAVE
EXPIRED, IT SHALL BE LAWFUL FOR ANY ATTORNEY TO APPEAR FOR TENANT IN ANY AND ALL SUITS OR ACTIONS WHICH MAY BE BROUGHT
FOR POSSESSION AND/OR EJECTMENT; AND AS ATTORNEY FOR TENANT TO CONFESS JUDGMENT IN EJECTMENT AGAINST TENANT AND ALL
PERSONS CLAIMING UNDER TENANT FOR THE RECOVERY BY LANDLORD OF POSSESSION OF THE DEMISED PREMISES, FOR WHICH THIS LEASE
SHALL BE LANDLORD’S SUFFICIENT WARRANT. UPON SUCH CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT FOR POSSESSION, IF LANDLORD SO DESIRES, A WRIT OF
EXECUTION OR OF POSSESSION MAY ISSUE FORTHWITH, WITHOUT ANY PRIOR WRIT OR PROCEEDINGS WHATSOEVER. IF FOR ANY REASON AFTER
SUCH ACTION SHALL HAVE BEEN COMMENCED, THE SAME SHALL BE DETERMINED AND THE POSSESSION OF THE DEMISED PREMISES SHALL
REMAIN IN OR BE RESTORED TO TENANT, THEN LANDLORD SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT UPON ANY SUBSEQUENT OR CONTINUING DEFAULT OR
DEFAULTS, OR AFTER EXPIRATION OF THE LEASE, OR UPON THE TERMINATION OF THIS LEASE AS HEREINBEFORE SET FORTH, TO BRING ONE OR
MORE FURTHER ACTIONS AS HEREINBEFORE SET FORTH TO RECOVER POSSESSION OF THE DEMISED PREMISES.

(Tenant initials)

(ii) In any action of ejectment, Landlord shall cause to be filed in such action an affidavit made by Landlord or someone acting for Landlord setting forth the
facts necessary to authorize the entry of judgment, of which facts such affidavit shall be conclusive evidence. If a true copy of this Lease shall be filed in such action (and the
truth of the copy as asserted in the affidavit of Landlord shall be sufficient evidence of same), it shall not be necessary to file the original Lease as a warrant of attorney, any
rule of court, custom or practice to the contrary notwithstanding.

(iii) Tenant expressly agrees, to the extent not prohibited by law, that any judgment, order or decree entered against it by or in any court or magistrate by virtue
of the powers of attorney contained in this Lease shall be final, and that Tenant will not take an appeal, certiorari, writ of error, exception or objection to the same, or file a
motion or rule to strike off or open or to stay execution of the same, and releases to Landlord and to any and all attorneys who may appear for Tenant all errors in such
proceedings and all liability therefor.

@iv) The right to enter judgment against Tenant and to enforce all of the other provisions of this Lease herein provided for, at the option of any assignee of this
Lease, may be exercised by any assignee of Landlord’s right, title and interest in this Lease in Tenant’s own name, notwithstanding the fact that any or all assignments of such
right, title and interest may not be executed and/or witnessed in accordance with the Act of Assembly of May 28, 1715, 1 Sm. L. 94, and all supplements and amendments
thereto that have been or may hereafter be passed. Tenant hereby expressly waives the requirements of such Act of Assembly and any and all laws regulating the manner
and/or form in which such assignments shall be executed and witnessed.

W) Tenant acknowledges that it has been represented by counsel in connection with the negotiation of this Lease, that it has read and discussed with such
counsel the provisions herein relating to confession of judgment, and that it understands the nature and consequences of such provisions.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this 4" Amendment as of the date first above written.



LANDLORD: WITNESSES:

PIOS GRANDE KOP BUSINESS CENTER, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership

By: PIOS GRANDE, LLC, its general partner /s/ Jenn Shepelu
By: /s/ Vincent T. Abessinio /s/ Diane Witeak
Name: Vincent T. Abessinio

Title: Executive Vice President

TENANT:

TREVENA, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
/s/ Roberto Cuca

By: /s/ John M. Limongelli
Name: John M. Limongelli /s/ Michael W. Lark
Title: SVP, General Counsel & Corp. Secretary
6
EXHIBIT A
(DIAGRAM OF NEW EXPANSION PREMISES)
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EXHIBIT B
NEW EXPANSION COMMENCEMENT DATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT
This New Expansion Commencement Date Acknowledgment is made and entered into this day of , 2015, by and between Pios Grande KOP

Business Center, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“Landlord”), and Trevena, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“Tenant”).
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are respectively Landlord and Tenant in a certain 4th Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement (“4" Amendment”) made as of
the day of January, 2015, adding certain New Expansion Premises of approximately 2,157 rentable square feet to the existing Expansion Premises and Original Demised
Premises consisting of approximately 14,577 rentable square feet located at 1018 West Eighth Avenue, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, for a total Demised Premises of
approximately 16,714 rentable square feet;

AND WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any subsequent controversy as to the exact date of the New Expansion Commencement Date of the 4" Amendment;
THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant do hereby agree that the New Expansion Commencement Date of the 4" Amendment is the day of ,2015.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this New Expansion Commencement Date Acknowledgement as of the day and year first above
written.

LANDLORD:

Pios Grande KOP Business Center, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,

By: Pios Grande, LLC, its general partner

By:

Name:
Title:

TENANT:
Trevena, Inc., a Delaware corporation

By:

Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 10.5

TREVENA, INC.
FORM OF STOCK OPTION GRANT NOTICE
(2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN)

Trevena, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants to Optionholder an option to purchase the number of shares of the
Company’s Common Stock set forth below. This option is subject to all of the terms and conditions as set forth in this notice, in the Option Agreement, the Plan and the
Notice of Exercise, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein in their entirety. Capitalized terms not explicitly defined herein but defined in the Plan or the
Option Agreement will have the same definitions as in the Plan or the Option Agreement. If there is any conflict between the terms in this notice and the Plan, the terms of the
Plan will control.

Optionholder:

Date of Grant:

Vesting Commencement Date:

Number of Shares Subject to Option:

Exercise Price (Per Share): $

Total Exercise Price: $

Expiration Date: Ten (10) years measured from Date of Grant.

Type of Grant: O Incentive Stock Option(1) O Nonstatutory Stock Option
Exercise Schedule: Same as Vesting Schedule O Early Exercise Permitted
Vesting Schedule: See “Annex A — Vesting Provisions”

Payment: By one or a combination of the following items (described in the Option Agreement):
By cash, check, bank draft or money order payable to the Company

Pursuant to a Regulation T Program if the shares are publicly traded

By delivery of already-owned shares if the shares are publicly traded

If and only to the extent this option is a Nonstatutory Stock Option, and subject to the Company’s consent at the time of exercise, by a “net
exercise” arrangement

OO0

Additional Terms/Acknowledgements: Optionholder acknowledges receipt of, and understands and agrees to, this Stock Option Grant Notice, the Option Agreement and
the Plan. Optionholder acknowledges and agrees that this Stock Option Grant Notice and the Option Agreement may not be modified, amended or revised except as provided
in the Plan. Optionholder further acknowledges that as of the Date of Grant, this Stock Option Grant Notice, the Option Agreement, and the Plan set forth the entire
understanding between Optionholder and the Company regarding this option award and supersede all prior oral and written agreements, promises and/or representations on
that subject with the exception of (i) options previously granted and delivered to Optionholder, (ii) any compensation recovery policy that is adopted by the Company or is
otherwise required by applicable law and (iii) any written employment or severance arrangement that would provide for vesting acceleration of this option upon the terms and
conditions set forth therein. By accepting this option, Optionholder consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and to participate in the Plan through an on-line
or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party designated by the Company.

(1) Ifthis is an Incentive Stock Option, it (plus other outstanding Incentive Stock Options) cannot be firstexercisable for more than $100,000 in value (measured by exercise
price) in any calendar year. Any excess over $100,000 is a Nonstatutory Stock Option.

TREVENA, INC. OPTIONHOLDER:
By:
Signature Signature
Date:
Title:
Date:

ATTACHMENTS: Option Agreement, 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and Notice of Exercise

ANNEX A
VESTING PROVISIONS

FOR EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION AWARDS MADE PRIOR TO JANUARY 1, 2015 (ONE OF THE FOLLOWING):

(1) Standard Vesting: On a quarterly basis (i.e., every three months) measured from the Vesting Commencement Date, the option shall become vested with respect to one-
sixteenth (1/16) of the total number of shares of stock subject to the option, until such time as the option is vested with respect to all the shares subject to the option, subject
to the Optionholder’s Continuous Service (as defined in the Plan) as of each such date.

(2) Six month CIliff Vesting: On the date six months after the Vesting Commencement Date (the “vesting semi-anniversary date”), the option shall become vested with respect
to the one-eighth (1/8) of the total number of shares of stock subject to the option. Thereafter, on a quarterly basis (i.e., every three months) measured from the vesting
semi-anniversary date, the option shall become vested with respect to an additional one-sixteenth (1/16) of the total number of shares subject to the option, until such time
as the option is vested with respect to all the shares subject to the option, subject to Optionholder’s Continuous Services (as defined in the Plan) as of each such date.

(3) Twelve month Cliff Vesting: On the date twelve months after the Vesting Commencement Date (the “vesting semi-anniversary date”), the option shall become vested
with respect to the one-fourth (1/4) of the total number of shares of stock subject to the option. Thereafter, on a quarterly basis (i.e., every three months) measured from the
vesting semi-anniversary date, the option shall become vested with respect to an additional one-sixteenth (1/16) of the total number of shares subject to the option, until
such time as the option is vested with respect to all the shares subject to the option, subject to Optionholder’s Continuous Services (as defined in the Plan) as of each such
date.

FOR ALL EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION AWARDS MADE ON OR AFTER JANUARY 1, 2015:




On an annual basis (i.e., every twelve months) measured from the Vesting Commencement Date, the option shall become vested with respect to one-fourth (1/4) of the total
number of shares subject to the option, until such time as the option is vested with respect to all the shares subject to the option, subject to the Optionholder’s Continuous
Service (as defined in the Plan) as of each such vesting date.

FOR ALL NON-EMPLOYEE BOARD OF DIRCTOR STOCK OPTION AWARDS:

(1) Initial Award Vesting: On a quarterly basis (i.e., every three months) measured from the Vesting Commencement Date, the option shall become vested with respect to
one-twelfth (1/12) of the total number of shares subject to the option, until such time as the option is vested with respect to all the shares subject to the option, subject to the
Optionholder’s Continuous Service (as defined in the Plan) as of each such vesting date.

(2) Annual Grant Vesting: The option shall become vested with respect to the total number of shares subject to the option on the day immediately prior to the date of the next
annual stockholders’ meeting occurring after the Vesting Commencement Date, subject to the Optionholder’s Continuous Service (as defined in the Plan) as of such vesting
date.

ATTACHMENT I

TREVENA, INC.
2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

OPTION AGREEMENT
(INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION OR NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION)

Pursuant to your Stock Option Grant Notice (“Grant Notice”) and this Option Agreement, Trevena, Inc. (the “Company”) has granted you an option under its 2013
Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) to purchase the number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock indicated in your Grant Notice at the exercise price indicated in your
Grant Notice. The option is granted to you effective as of the date of grant set forth in the Grant Notice (the “Date of Grant’). 1f there is any conflict between the terms in
this Option Agreement and the Plan, the terms of the Plan will control. Capitalized terms not explicitly defined in this Option Agreement or in the Grant Notice but defined in
the Plan will have the same definitions as in the Plan.

The details of your option, in addition to those set forth in the Grant Notice and the Plan, are as follows:

1. VESTING. Subject to the provisions contained herein, your option will vest as provided in your Grant Notice. Vesting will cease upon the termination of
your Continuous Service.

2. NUMBER OF SHARES AND EXERCISE PRICE. The number of shares of Common Stock subject to your option and your exercise price per share in
your Grant Notice will be adjusted for Capitalization Adjustments.

3. EXERCISE RESTRICTION FOR NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEES. If you are an Employee eligible for overtime compensation under the Fair Labor
Standards Act of 1938, as amended (that is, a “Non-Exempt Employee”), and except as otherwise provided in the Plan, you may not exercise your option until you have
completed at least six (6) months of Continuous Service measured from the Date of Grant, even if you have already been an employee for more than six (6) months.
Consistent with the provisions of the Worker Economic Opportunity Act, you may exercise your option as to any vested portion prior to such six (6) month anniversary in the
case of (i) your death or disability, (ii) a Corporate Transaction in which your option is not assumed, continued or substituted, (iii) a Change in Control or (iv) your
termination of Continuous Service on your “retirement” (as defined in the Company’s benefit plans).

4. EXERCISE PRIOR TO VESTING (“EARLY EXERCISE”).You may not exercise your option prior to vesting.
5. METHOD OF PAYMENT. You must pay the full amount of the exercise price for the shares you wish to exercise. You may pay the exercise price in

cash or by check, bank draft or money order payable to the Company or in any other manner permitted by your Grant Notice, which may include one or more of the
following:

(a) Provided that at the time of exercise the Common Stock is publicly traded, pursuant to a program developed under Regulation T as promulgated
by the Federal Reserve Board that, prior to the issuance of Common Stock, results in either the receipt of cash (or check) by the Company or the receipt of irrevocable

instructions to pay the aggregate exercise price to the Company from the sales proceeds. This manner of payment is also known as a “broker-assisted exercise”, “same day
sale”, or “sell to cover”.

(b) Provided that at the time of exercise the Common Stock is publicly traded, by delivery to the Company (either by actual delivery or attestation) of
already-owned shares of Common Stock that are owned free and clear of any liens, claims, encumbrances or security interests, and that are valued at Fair Market Value on the
date of exercise. “Delivery” for these purposes, in the sole discretion of the Company at the time you exercise your option, will include delivery to the Company of your
attestation of ownership of such shares of Common Stock in a form approved by the Company. You may not exercise your option by delivery to the Company of Common
Stock if doing so would violate the provisions of any law, regulation or agreement restricting the redemption of the Company’s stock.

(©) If this option is a Nonstatutory Stock Option, subject to the consent of the Company at the time of exercise, by a “net exercise” arrangement
pursuant to which the Company will reduce the number of shares of Common Stock issued upon exercise of your option by the largest whole number of shares with a Fair
Market Value that does not exceed the aggregate exercise price. You must pay any remaining balance of the aggregate exercise price not satisfied by the “net exercise” in
cash or other permitted form of payment. Shares of Common Stock will no longer be outstanding under your option and will not be exercisable thereafter if those shares
(i) are used to pay the exercise price pursuant to the “net exercise,” (ii) are delivered to you as a result of such exercise, and (iii) are withheld to satisfy your tax withholding
obligations.

6. WHOLE SHARES. You may exercise your option only for whole shares of Common Stock.

7. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. In no event may you exercise your option unless the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise are then
registered under the Securities Act or, if not registered, the Company has determined that your exercise and the issuance of the shares would be exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. The exercise of your option also must comply with all other applicable laws and regulations governing your option, and you may not
exercise your option if the Company determines that such exercise would not be in material compliance with such laws and regulations (including any restrictions on exercise
required for compliance with Treas. Reg. 1.401(k)-1(d)(3), if applicable).

8. TERM. You may not exercise your option before the Date of Grant or after the expiration of the option’s term. The term of your option expires, subject to
the provisions of Section 5(h) of the Plan, upon the earliest of the following:



(a) immediately upon the termination of your Continuous Service for Cause;

(b) three (3) months after the termination of your Continuous Service for any reason other than Cause, your Disability or your death (except as
otherwise provided in Section 8(d) below); provided, however, that if during any part of such three (3) month period your option is not exercisable solely because of the
condition set forth in the section above relating to “Securities Law Compliance,” your option will not expire until the earlier of the Expiration Date or until it has been
exercisable for an aggregate period of three (3) months after the termination of your Continuous Service; provided further, if during any part of such three (3) month period,
the sale of any Common Stock received upon exercise of your option would violate the Company’s insider trading policy, then your option will not expire until the earlier of
the Expiration Date or until it has been exercisable for an aggregate period of three (3) months after the termination of your Continuous Service during which the sale of the
Common Stock received upon exercise of your option would not be in violation of the Company’s insider trading policy. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) you are a Non-
Exempt Employee, (ii) your Continuous Service terminates within six (6) months after the Date of Grant, and (iii) you have vested in a portion of your option at the time of
your termination of Continuous Service, your option will not expire until the earlier of (x) the later of (A) the date that is seven (7) months after the Date of Grant, and (B) the
date that is three (3) months after the termination of your Continuous Service, and (y) the Expiration Date;

(c) twelve (12) months after the termination of your Continuous Service due to your Disability (except as otherwise provided in Section 8(d)) below;

(d) eighteen (18) months after your death if you die either during your Continuous Service or within three (3) months after your Continuous Service
terminates for any reason other than Cause;

(e) the Expiration Date indicated in your Grant Notice; or
) the day before the tenth (10th) anniversary of the Date of Grant.

If your option is an Incentive Stock Option, note that to obtain the federal income tax advantages associated with an Incentive Stock Option, the Code requires that
at all times beginning on the Date of Grant and ending on the day three (3) months before the date of your option’s exercise, you must be an employee of the Company or an
Affiliate, except in the event of your death or Disability. The Company has provided for extended exercisability of your option under certain circumstances for your benefit
but cannot guarantee that your option will necessarily be treated as an Incentive Stock Option if you continue to provide services to the Company or an Affiliate as a
Consultant or Director after your employment terminates or if you otherwise exercise your option more than three (3) months after the date your employment with the
Company or an Affiliate terminates.

9. EXERCISE.
(a) You may exercise the vested portion of your option (and the unvested portion of your option if your Grant Notice so permits) during its term by

(i) delivering a Notice of Exercise (in a form designated by the Company) or completing such other documents and/or procedures designated by the Company for exercise and
(ii) paying the exercise price and any

applicable withholding taxes to the Company’s Secretary, stock plan administrator, or such other person as the Company may designate, together with such additional
documents as the Company may then require.

(b) By exercising your option you agree that, as a condition to any exercise of your option, the Company may require you to enter into an arrangement
providing for the payment by you to the Company of any tax withholding obligation of the Company arising by reason of (i) the exercise of your option, (ii) the lapse of any
substantial risk of forfeiture to which the shares of Common Stock are subject at the time of exercise, or (iii) the disposition of shares of Common Stock acquired upon such
exercise.

(c) If your option is an Incentive Stock Option, by exercising your option you agree that you will notify the Company in writing within fifteen (15)
days after the date of any disposition of any of the shares of the Common Stock issued upon exercise of your option that occurs within two (2) years after the Date of Grant or
within one (1) year after such shares of Common Stock are transferred upon exercise of your option.

(d) By accepting your option you agree that you will not sell, dispose of, transfer, make any short sale of, grant any option for the purchase of, or enter
into any hedging or similar transaction with the same economic effect as a sale, any shares of Common Stock or other securities of the Company held by you, for a period of
one hundred eighty (180) days following the effective date of a registration statement of the Company filed under the Securities Act or such longer period as the underwriters
or the Company will request to facilitate compliance with FINRA Rule 2711 or NYSE Member Rule 472-or any successor or similar rules or regulation—(the “Lock-Up
Period”); provided, however, that nothing contained in this section will prevent the exercise of a repurchase option, if any, in favor of the Company during the Lock-Up
Period. You further agree to execute and deliver such other agreements as may be reasonably requested by the Company or the underwriters that are consistent with the
foregoing or that are necessary to give further effect thereto. In order to enforce the foregoing covenant, the Company may impose stop-transfer instructions with respect to
your shares of Common Stock until the end of such period. You also agree that any transferee of any shares of Common Stock (or other securities) of the Company held by
you will be bound by this Section 9(d). The underwriters of the Company’s stock are intended third party beneficiaries of this Section 9(d) and will have the right, power and
authority to enforce the provisions hereof as though they were a party hereto.

10. TRANSFERABILITY. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 10, your option is not transferable, except by will or by the laws of descent and
distribution, and is exercisable during your life only by you.

(a) Certain Trusts. Upon receiving written permission from the Board or its duly authorized designee, you may transfer your option to a trust if you
are considered to be the sole beneficial owner (determined under Section 671 of the Code and applicable state law) while the option is held in the trust. You and the trustee
must enter into transfer and other agreements required by the Company.

(b) Domestic Relations Orders. Upon receiving written permission from the Board or its duly authorized designee, and provided that you and the
designated transferee enter into transfer and other agreements required by the Company, you may transfer your option pursuant to the terms of a domestic relations order,
official marital settlement agreement or other divorce or separation instrument as permitted by Treasury Regulation 1.421-1(b)(2) that contains the information required by
the Company to effectuate the transfer. You are encouraged to discuss the proposed terms of any division of this option with the Company prior to finalizing the domestic
relations order or marital settlement agreement to help ensure the required information is contained within the domestic relations order or marital settlement agreement. If
this option is an Incentive Stock Option, this option may be deemed to be a Nonstatutory Stock Option as a result of such transfer.

(©) Beneficiary Designation. Upon receiving written permission from the Board or its duly authorized designee, you may, by delivering written



notice to the Company, in a form approved by the Company and any broker designated by the Company to handle option exercises, designate a third party who, on your death,
will thereafter be entitled to exercise this option and receive the Common Stock or other consideration resulting from such exercise. In the absence of such a designation, your
executor or administrator of your estate will be entitled to exercise this option and receive, on behalf of your estate, the Common Stock or other consideration resulting from
such exercise.

11. OPTION NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. Your option is not an employment or service contract, and nothing in your option will be deemed to create in
any way whatsoever any obligation on your part to continue in the employ of the Company or an Affiliate, or of the Company or an Affiliate to continue your employment. In
addition, nothing in your option will obligate the Company or an Affiliate, their respective stockholders, boards of directors, officers or employees to continue any
relationship that you might have as a Director or Consultant for the Company or an Affiliate.

12. WITHHOLDING OBLIGATIONS.

(a) At the time you exercise your option, in whole or in part, and at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, you hereby authorize
withholding from payroll and any other amounts payable to you, and otherwise agree to make adequate provision for (including by means of a “same day sale” pursuant to a
program developed under Regulation T as promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board to the extent permitted by the Company), any sums required to satisfy the federal, state,
local and foreign tax withholding obligations of the Company or an Affiliate, if any, which arise in connection with the exercise of your option.

(b) If this option is a Nonstatutory Stock Option, then upon your request and subject to approval by the Company, and compliance with any applicable
legal conditions or restrictions, the Company may withhold from fully vested shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable to you upon the exercise of your option a number of
whole shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value, determined by the Company as of the date of exercise, not in excess of the minimum amount of tax required to
be withheld by law (or such lower amount as may be necessary to avoid classification of your option as a liability for financial accounting purposes). If the date of
determination of any tax withholding obligation is deferred to a date later than the

date of exercise of your option, share withholding pursuant to the preceding sentence shall not be permitted unless you make a proper and timely election under

Section 83(b) of the Code, covering the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock acquired upon such exercise with respect to which such determination is otherwise
deferred, to accelerate the determination of such tax withholding obligation to the date of exercise of your option. Notwithstanding the filing of such election, shares of
Common Stock shall be withheld solely from fully vested shares of Common Stock determined as of the date of exercise of your option that are otherwise issuable to you
upon such exercise. Any adverse consequences to you arising in connection with such share withholding procedure shall be your sole responsibility.

(©) You may not exercise your option unless the tax withholding obligations of the Company and/or any Affiliate are satisfied. Accordingly, you may
not be able to exercise your option when desired even though your option is vested, and the Company will have no obligation to issue a certificate for such shares of Common
Stock or release such shares of Common Stock from any escrow provided for herein, if applicable, unless such obligations are satisfied.

13. TAX CONSEQUENCES. You hereby agree that the Company does not have a duty to design or administer the Plan or its other compensation programs in
a manner that minimizes your tax liabilities. You will not make any claim against the Company, or any of its Officers, Directors, Employees or Affiliates related to tax
liabilities arising from your option or your other compensation. In particular, you acknowledge that this option is exempt from Section 409A of the Code only if the exercise
price per share specified in the Grant Notice is at least equal to the “fair market value” per share of the Common Stock on the Date of Grant and there is no other
impermissible deferral of compensation associated with the option.

14. NOTICES. Any notices provided for in your option or the Plan will be given in writing (including electronically) and will be deemed effectively given
upon receipt or, in the case of notices delivered by mail by the Company to you, five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at the
last address you provided to the Company. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to participation in the Plan and this option by
electronic means or to request your consent to participate in the Plan by electronic means. By accepting this option, you consent to receive such documents by electronic
delivery and to participate in the Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party designated by the Company.

15. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. Your option is subject to all the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which are hereby made a part of your
option, and is further subject to all interpretations, amendments, rules and regulations, which may from time to time be promulgated and adopted pursuant to the Plan. If there
is any conflict between the provisions of your option and those of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will control. In addition, your option (and any compensation paid or
shares issued under your option) is subject to recoupment in accordance with The Dodd—Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and any implementing
regulations thereunder, any clawback policy adopted by the Company and any compensation recovery policy otherwise required by applicable law.

16. OTHER DOCUMENTS. You hereby acknowledge receipt of and the right to receive a document providing the information required by Rule 428(b)
(1) promulgated under the Securities Act, which includes the Plan prospectus. In addition, you acknowledge receipt of the Company’s policy permitting certain individuals to
sell shares only during certain “window” periods and the Company’s insider trading policy, in effect from time to time.

17. EFFECT ON OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS. The value of this option will not be included as compensation, earnings, salaries, or other
similar terms used when calculating your benefits under any employee benefit plan sponsored by the Company or any Affiliate, except as such plan otherwise expressly
provides. The Company expressly reserves its rights to amend, modify, or terminate any of the Company’s or any Affiliate’s employee benefit plans.

18. VOTING RIGHTS. You will not have voting or any other rights as a stockholder of the Company with respect to the shares to be issued pursuant to this
option until such shares are issued to you. Upon such issuance, you will obtain full voting and other rights as a stockholder of the Company. Nothing contained in this option,
and no action taken pursuant to its provisions, will create or be construed to create a trust of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between you and the Company or any other
person.

19. SEVERABILITY. If all or any part of this Option Agreement or the Plan is declared by any court or governmental authority to be unlawful or invalid, such
unlawfulness or invalidity will not invalidate any portion of this Option Agreement or the Plan not declared to be unlawful or invalid. Any Section of this Option Agreement
(or part of such a Section) so declared to be unlawful or invalid shall, if possible, be construed in a manner which will give effect to the terms of such Section or part of a
Section to the fullest extent possible while remaining lawful and valid.

20. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) The rights and obligations of the Company under your option will be transferable to any one or more persons or entities, and all covenants and
agreements hereunder will inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Company’s successors and assigns.

(b) You agree upon request to execute any further documents or instruments necessary or desirable in the sole determination of the Company to carry
out the purposes or intent of your option.

(©) You acknowledge and agree that you have reviewed your option in its entirety, have had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to



executing and accepting your option, and fully understand all provisions of your option.

(d) This Option Agreement will be subject to all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or
national securities exchanges as may be required.

(e) All obligations of the Company under the Plan and this Option Agreement will be binding on any successor to the Company, whether the existence
of such successor is the

result of a direct or indirect purchase, merger, consolidation, or otherwise, of all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of the Company.

* * *

This Option Agreement will be deemed to be signed by you upon the signing by you of the Stock Option Grant Notice to which it is attached.




Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Trevena, Inc.
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Maxine Gowen, certify that:

L.

2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Trevena, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: May 7, 2015

/s/ MAXINE GOWEN
Maxine Gowen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of Trevena, Inc.
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Roberto Cuca, certify that:

L.

2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Trevena, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: May 7, 2015

/s/ ROBERTO CUCA
Roberto Cuca
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Of
Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Trevena, Inc. (the “Company”’) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Maxine Gowen, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company at the end of the period covered by the
Report and results of operations of the Company for the period covered by the Report.

Date: May 7, 2015 /s/ MAXINE GOWEN
Maxine Gowen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

This certification accompanies the Report and shall not be deemed “filed” by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the
date of the Report), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

1




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Of
Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Trevena, Inc. (the “Company”’) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Roberto Cuca, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company at the end of the period covered by the
Report and results of operations of the Company for the period covered by the Report.

Dated: May 7, 2015 /s/ ROBERTO CUCA
Roberto Cuca
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

This certification accompanies the Report and shall not be deemed “filed” by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the
date of the Report), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

1




